

MINUTES

of the

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

held on

WEDNESDAY 27 JUNE 2018

in the

ALEXANDRA - COUNCIL CHAMBER

commencing at

6.00 pm



INDEX

1.	PLEDGE AND RECONCILIATION STATEMENT	2
2.	APOLOGIES AND REQUESTS FOR LEAVE OF ABSENCE	2
3.	COMMUNITY RECOGNITION	2
4.	DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST OR CONFLICT OF INTEREST	3
5.	CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES	3
6.	PUBLIC PARTICIPATION TIME	4
6.1 6.2 6.3	Questions of Council Open Forum Petitions	4
7.	OUR PLACE	5
7.1 7.2	Place of Assembly (Former Yea Butter Factory) - Application 2018/6 Proposed Amendment to Sec 173 Agreement – Mulqueeny Lane, Yea	. 15
8.	OUR PEOPLE	.18
8.1	Community Grants Program – March to May 2018	. 18
9.	OUR PROSPERITY	.20
10	OUR PROMISE	.21
10.1 10.2 10.3	Annual Budget and Strategic Resource Plan 2018/19 Adoption Procurement Policy Review – 2017/18 Audit Advisory Committee Minutes and Appointment of Chair	.26
11.	NOTICES OF MOTIONS	.28
12.	MATTERS DEFERRED FROM PREVIOUS MEETING	.28
13.	URGENT BUSINESS	.28
14.	COUNCILLOR AND PORTFOLIO REPORTS	.28
14.6 14.7	Cr Margaret Rae - Land Use Planning Portfolio Cr Jackie Ashe - Economic Development Portfolio Cr Eric Lording - Infrastructure and Waste Portfolio Cr Leigh Dunscombe - Corporate and Customer Services Portfolio Cr Rebecca Bowles - Natural Environment and Climate Change Portfolio Cr Sandice McAulay – Community Services Portfolio Cr Charlotte Bisset – Mayoral Report	.30 .31 .31 .32 .32 .34
15.	CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT	
16.	ASSEMBLIES OF COUNCILLORS	
17.	SEALING REGISTER	
18.	CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS	
18.3 Visy (Quarry Products Panel – Cont18/5 Contract Matters	. 39 . 40

1. PLEDGE AND RECONCILIATION STATEMENT

The meeting was opened with all Councillors declaring the following Pledge:

"As the Councillors democratically elected to represent our community as the Murrindindi Shire Council we are committed to working together in the best interests of the people who live in our municipality, who conduct business here and those who visit."

2. APOLOGIES AND REQUESTS FOR LEAVE OF ABSENCE

There were no apologies or requests for leave of absence tendered.

Present:

Crs C Bisset (Chair), S McAulay, R Bowles, J Ashe, L Dunscombe, E Lording, M Rae

In attendance:

Interim Chief Executive Officer: Craig Lloyd General Manager Corporate and Community Services: Michael Chesworth Acting General Manager Infrastructure and Development Services: Shivaun Brown Manager Business Services: Andrew Bond Manager Communications Library & Customer Services: Jacqui Rabel Manager Infrastructure Operations: Mark Leitinger Acting Manager Development Services: Darren Jackson Online and Social Media Coordinator: Trudi Elkington Governance Officer: Audrey Kyval

3. COMMUNITY RECOGNITION

Suspension of orders to thank and acknowledge community achievements.

RESOLUTION:

Cr S McAulay/ Cr J Ashe

That Standing Orders be suspended and for the Community Recognition be tabled in the minutes

CARRIED

The meeting was suspended at 6.01 pm.

Cr C Bisset welcomed the students and representatives from Eildon Primary School and Marysville Primary School as well as their families.

It is a great pleasure to be able to recognise the following school leaders who have been appointed for 2018:

Eildon Primary School

- School Captains
 - o Jessica Newman
 - Brayden Gemenis
- Vice Captains
 - o Ethan Hodge
 - Joseph Haebich-Mills

- Senior SRCs
 - o Tahlia Futcher
- House Captain
 - Sebastien Seyfang
- Sports Captain
 - o Olivia Sproles

Marysville Primary School

- School Captains
 - o Lily McLean
 - Matthew Thompson
- Junior School Councillors
 - o Olivia Kondratenkov
 - o Jaime Johnston
 - o Billy Baker
 - Jayd Bennett (absent)
 - Samuel Harris (absent)
 - Dean Nikua (absent)

Congratulations to each student for taking on these important roles in your school communities.

We wish you all the very best. Enjoy every moment of your leadership role and we hope that you look back on it as one of your best experiences.

RESOLUTION:

Cr S McAulay / Cr L Dunscombe That Standing Orders be resumed.

CARRIED

The meeting was resumed at 6.09 pm.

4. DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST OR CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Cr R Bowles disclosed an indirect conflict of interest because of an impact on her residential amenity in agenda item 7.1 being the Place of Assembly (Former Yea Butter Factory) - Application 2018/6, as her property abuts the applicant's property.

5. CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

5.1 Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held on 23 May 2018.

Officer Recommendation

That the minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held on 23 May 2018 be confirmed.

RESOLUTION:

Cr M Rae / Cr L Dunscombe

That the minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held on 23 May 2018 be confirmed.

CARRIED

5.2 Minutes of the Special Meeting of Council held on 13 June 2018 4 pm.

Officer Recommendation

That the minutes of the Special Meeting of Council held on 13 June 2018 4 pm be confirmed.

RESOLUTION:

Cr S McAulay / Cr E Lording

That the minutes of the Special Meeting of Council held on 13 June 2018 4 pm be confirmed.

CARRIED

5.3 Minutes of the Special Meeting of Council held on 13 June 2018 6 pm.

Officer Recommendation

That the minutes of the Special Meeting of Council held on 13 June 2018 6 pm be confirmed.

RESOLUTION:

Cr M Rae / Cr L Dunscombe

That the minutes of the Special Meeting of Council held on 13 June 2018 6 pm be confirmed.

CARRIED

The Chairperson declared Public Participation Time and invited questions from the Gallery.

6. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION TIME

6.1 QUESTIONS OF COUNCIL

Nil

6.2 OPEN FORUM

Ron Litjens spoke in support of the Place of Assembly (Former Yea Butter Factory) - Application 2018/6 (item 7.1 on the Agenda).

Jeff Aurisch spoke against the Council officer's recommendation for the Proposed Amendment to Sec 173 Agreement – Mulqueeny Lane, Yea (item 7.2 on the Agenda).

Shelley Creighton spoke on behalf Rubicon Village residents regarding concerns with body corporate.

Sue Brayley spoke about Yea Racecourse having no outside barrier around the race track.

6.3 PETITIONS

Nil

The Chairperson closed Public Participation Time.

7. OUR PLACE

Cr R Bowles left the Chamber at 6.34 pm prior to consideration of item 7.1 of the Agenda.

7.1 PLACE OF ASSEMBLY (FORMER YEA BUTTER FACTORY) - APPLICATION 2018/6

Attachment(s):	Application Details (refer Attachment 7.1)
	Submissions supplied separately

Land: 13 Rattray Street Yea
 Proposal: Use and development of land for the purpose of a place of assembly, buildings and works within a Heritage Overlay and a reduction in car parking requirements
 Applicant: R A Litjens
 Zoning: Mixed Use Zone
 Overlays: Heritage Overlay (HO104)

Locality Plan



Purpose

This report recommends that a Notice of Decision to Grant a Permit be issued for the adaptive reuse and development of the historic Yea Butter Factory for the purpose of a place of assembly. The application is being reported to Council because a single objection has been received.

Officer Recommendation

That Council issue a Notice of Decision to Grant a Permit allowing the use and development of the land for the purpose of a place of assembly, buildings and works within land affected by a Heritage Overlay and for a reduction of car parking requirements at 13 Rattray Street Yea (Lot 2 PS 330151), subject to the following conditions:

- 1. The layout of the site and the size and type of the proposed buildings and works, including the materials of construction, as shown on the endorsed plan shall not be altered or modified without the consent in writing of the Responsible Authority
- 2. This permit shall expire if the development hereby permitted is not completed and the use commenced within two years of the date hereof, or any extension of such period the Responsible Authority may allow in writing. A request for an extension of time may be made before or within six months after the permit expiry date, where the use or development allowed by the permit has not yet commenced, or within 12 months after the permit expiry date, where the development allowed by the permit allowed by the permit allowed by the permit allowed by the permit lawfully commenced before the permit expired
- 3. The use of the land for the purpose of a place of assembly is restricted to theatre productions, wellness classes, community events, conferences, functions, exhibitions and concerts. The use can only be undertaken between the hours of 9 am to 9 pm Sunday to Thursday and 9 am to 11 pm Friday and Saturday except with the written consent of the Responsible Authority
- 4. The maximum number of patrons onsite cannot exceed 100 except with the written consent of the Responsible Authority
- 5. No external sound amplification equipment or loud speakers are to be used for the purpose of announcement, broadcast, playing of music or similar purpose, to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority
- 6. A register of all events must be kept and provided to the Responsible Authority upon request. The register must include information on:
 - a. the type of event
 - b. the date and duration of the event
 - c. the number of patrons at the event
- 7. All refuse and rubbish associated with the use must be removed from the area at least once weekly, and more often if required by the Responsible Authority
- 8. The use or development hereby permitted shall not cause nuisance or injury to, or prejudicially affect the amenity of the locality, by reason of the transportation of materials, goods and commodities to and from the land, the appearance of any building, works, or materials on the land, the emission of noise, vibration, smell, fumes, smoke, vapour, steam soot, ash, dust, waste water, waste products, grit, oil or the presence of vermin or otherwise
- 9. The emission of noise from the premises including the surrounding environment and carpark areas either during or immediately after the hours permitted, must not cause annoyance to persons beyond the site
- 10. The subject land must be kept neat and tidy at all times and its appearance must not, in the opinion of the Responsible Authority, adversely affect the amenity of the locality
- 11. Outdoor lighting must be designed, baffled and located to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority such that no direct light is emitted outside the boundaries of the subject land.

Infrastructure

- 12. Prior to the commencement of the use or development a suitable prepared engineering plan detailing the proposed carpark, driveway, earthworks and drainage, must be submitted to the Responsible Authority and receive its endorsement. Endorsed plans must incorporate 28 car parking spaces with a minimum of two accessible car parking spaces
- 13. All stormwater and surface water discharging from the building and works must be conveyed to a point of discharge, approved by the relevant authority. No stormwater discharge from downpipes or overflow from storage tank and surface water shall be

directed or caused to be directed in a concentrated form that will cause erosion and or adverse affects within the site or to adjoining land or properties

- 14. The approved works must not cut off natural drainage to adjacent properties
- 15. The existing two vehicular crossings to be used for access and egress must be constructed/upgraded to suit the proposed driveways to the satisfaction of the responsible authority. Construction of new vehicular crossings must comply with the SD 250 of IDM for New Industrial Vehicle Crossing Detail
- 16. The existing northernmost driveway shall not be used to access the car park
- 17. Entrance 3 on the endorsed plan shall be used to enter the car park while Entrance 2 shall be used to exit the car park
- 18. No crossover shall be allowed from View Street unless the road is upgraded to Council's standards
- 19. An application for consent to work on the road reserve is required to be made prior to commencing any works on the road reserve and must comply with the requirements of the *Road Management Act 2004* and associated regulations
- 20. Prior to the construction of works associated with the provision of driveway, drainage and car parking, detailed construction plans in accordance with the endorsed plan, AS 2890 Part 1 Off Street Car Parking and AS 3500 Part 3 Stormwater Drainage and to the satisfaction of the relevant authority must be submitted to and approved by the Responsible Authority. The design and plans must be drawn to scale with levels and dimensions and prepared by a suitable qualified person
- 21. Signs to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority must be provided directing drivers to the area(s) set aside for car parking and must be located and maintained to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority. The area of each sign must not exceed 0.3 square metres
- 22. Prior to the commencement of the use hereby permitted the area(s) set aside for parking of vehicles, access lanes and parking signs as shown on the approved plans must be constructed and completed to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority. Car spaces, access lanes and driveways must be kept available for these purposes at all times.

Notation:

1. The permit holder should be aware that the operation of the use is at all times required, pursuant to the *Environmental Protection Act 1970*, to meet the requirements of the *State Environment Protection Policy (Control of Music Noise from Public Premises) No. N-2.*

Background

The Yea Butter Factory is a heritage place of local significance which is included in a Heritage Overlay under the Murrindindi Planning Scheme. The brick factory was constructed in 1905 and used for butter manufacturing until it closed in 1993. Since that time the building has been used as a dwelling (and for a short time as a restaurant).

A planning permit is required to use and develop the land for the purpose of a place of assembly under the Mixed Use Zone which affects the land. A permit is also required for external alternations to the heritage buildings under the Heritage Overlay and to reduce car parking requirements (discussed further in this report).

Notice of the application was provided in the form of sign on the land and notification to adjoining and opposite property owners and occupiers. A single objection has been received from a nonresident landowner opposite the subject land. The objection raises issues of potential public nuisance (particularly in association with the hours proposed for weddings and music concerts); noise, light emission and traffic issues. The objection states that there is potential for patron numbers and hours to extend beyond what is proposed and this will have an impact on the amenity of the area. Although the landowner does not reside at the premises there is a future intention to do so.

Attempts by Council officers to mediate an outcome between the objector and applicant have occurred however the objection has not been withdrawn. The application must therefore be determined by Council.

The Land and Surroundings

The land is approximately 1.75 hectares in size and extends from Rattray Street to View Street within the Yea township. The former butter factory comprises of a large three storey building which is situated on the Rattray Street frontage. The area immediately surrounding the butter factory is flat and cleared (other than for garden vegetation) while the balance of the land slopes up to the east (View Street) with scattered trees and vegetation.

There are existing dwellings on abutting land to the north of the property, on the southern boundary and on the western side of Rattray Street. The land to the east is in the Public Use Zone and vacant while the rest of the surrounding land is in a General Residential Zone.

Discussion

The proposed use and development will provide a positive economic outcome and community benefit. It has the potential to increase tourism opportunities for the area and is consistent with the provisions of the planning scheme and with the Council Plan 2017-2021. From a heritage perspective, the use and development will allow upgrades to the heritage place to ensure its future viability.

The applicant has provided details of the layout and proposed frequency of events, number of attendees and timeframes. An assessment of the key issues is outlined below.

<u>Operating hours:</u> the hours of use in the proposed conditions are not specific to the type of use and reflect the Mixed Use Zoning of the land and the substantial building located on the site. All evening events will end by 9 pm Sunday to Thursday and 11 pm on Fridays and Saturdays. While there is no restriction on the number of events there are conditions that protect the general amenity of the area.

<u>Access and egress:</u> there will be a one-way driveway system where the car parking exit has been positioned to reduce disturbance caused by patrons leaving the venue late in the evening. The driveway is located opposite the intersection of Rattray and Drysdale Streets, minimising any potential impact on properties from headlights. The entry point uses the southern access in Rattray Street.

<u>Car parking:</u> there will be a slight increase in traffic on occasions when the venue is used for weddings, concerts and theatre productions. The applicant has proposed 28 car parks on site. Under the parking provisions, Clause 52.06 Car Parking, 30 car spaces are required for 100 patrons when used as a place of assembly. This requires two further car spaces outside the property which can be accommodated on Rattray Street.

<u>Traffic:</u> there will be an increase in traffic on occasions when weddings, concerts and theatre productions take place. The roads are sealed and suitable for increased traffic flows. It is considered that the increased traffic will have minimal impact on residents of Rattray Street particularly given the management of onsite traffic flows detailed above.

<u>Noise:</u> the events will be held inside the former butter factory. All evening events will end by 11 pm. Proposed condition 5 ensures that no external amplification occurs on the property and the building itself is solid brick which aids noise attenuation. There are *State Environment Protection Policies* that must be adhered to and these requirements regulate noise levels for sensitive land uses.

<u>Lights from car park:</u> The applicant has submitted that the car park lighting will only be used on nights when events are held. They have also committed to ensuring modern lighting techniques are used with baffles to ensure the lighting will not impinge on residents of Rattray Street.

<u>Potential for numbers of people and frequency of events outside that permitted:</u> if a planning permit is issued, it will only permit the use of the land for that detailed in Condition 3. There is no evidence that the applicant will not comply with conditions of any permit that may be issued and if that were to occur compliance action could be commenced. The applicants will be required to keep a register of all events to be provided to Council on request.

The issues identified above can, where necessary, be readily managed by conditions as part of any permit that may be issued for the use and development.

Referrals

This application was referred to Council's heritage consultant who has supported and commended the proposed works.

Council Plan/Strategies/Policies

The application has been assessed to be consistent with the strategic objectives and strategies in the Murrindindi Shire Council Plan 2017-2021 which seeks to 'enhance the liveability, prosperity and rural character of our Shire'.

Relevant Legislation

The application is being assessed in accordance with the requirements of the *Planning and Environment Act 1987 (Victoria).*

Financial Implications and Risk

There is no financial risk to Council in this report.

Conflict of Interest

There are no declared conflicts of interest by Council officers in relation to this report.

Community and Stakeholder Consultation

Nearby and adjoining properties were notified of the application by mail and an advertisement was placed in the Yea Chronicle. One submission was received which raised several concerns as previously mentioned in this report.

The submission was provided to the applicants who subsequently responded to the submission addressing the concerns raised. The submitter called council to discuss their submission further. The submitter has not responded to two invitations to meet with the applicants and discuss the application. The submitter provided a further submission by email.

Legal/Policy Issues

State Planning Policy Framework

13.04 Noise and Air

Objective: To assist the control of noise effects on sensitive land uses.

Strategies:

 ensure that development is not prejudiced and community amenity is not reduced by noise emissions, using a range of building design, urban design and land use separation techniques as appropriate to the land use functions and character of the area.

17.01 Business

Objective: to encourage development which meet the communities' needs for retail, entertainment, office and other commercial services and provides net community benefit

in relation to accessibility, efficient infrastructure use and the aggregation and sustainability of commercial facilities.

Strategies:

 provide small scale shopping opportunities that meet the needs of local residents and workers in convenient locations.

17.03 Tourism

Objective: to encourage tourism development to maximise the employment and longterm economic, social and cultural benefits of developing the State as a competitive domestic and international tourist destination.

Strategies:

- encourage the development of a range of well-designed and sited tourist facilities, including integrated resorts, motel accommodation and smaller scale operations such as host farm, bed and breakfast and retail opportunities
- seek to ensure that tourism facilities have access to suitable transport and be compatible with and build upon the assets and qualities of surrounding urban or rural activities and cultural and natural attractions.

Local Planning Policy Framework

21.03-1 Business and Industry

Objective 1: business and industry investment - create a strong economy to promote business investment and expansion, population growth and social and cultural benefits to the community.

Strategies:

- support the sustainable growth of Murrindindi Shire's businesses and the local economy
- develop and promote opportunities for business retention and expansion, investment and employment
- build on strengths of existing local industry sectors, identifying and supporting new and emerging industries
- facilitate the operation and growth of rural and home based industries and commercial activities.

21.03-3 Tourism

Objective 1: tourism growth and facilitation - enhance and promote tourism to increase the economic, social and cultural benefits to the municipality.

Strategies:

- generate sustainable growth in tourism, leveraging Murrindindi Shire's natural assets, proximity to Melbourne and links with neighbouring regions
- foster a range of natural and built tourism attractions that encourage strong visitation to the municipality
- promote and enhance the range of tourist and recreational activities available across the entire municipality
- enhance tourism opportunities in townships with tourism potential
- facilitate development of new tourism accommodation options and conference centres

- market, promote and enhance of heritage assets, including the municipality's unique streetscapes, timber, rail and gold history and indigenous cultural heritage
- encourage tourism activities in any identified heritage place to which the Heritage Overlay applies
- encourage small creative enterprises in tourism, creative arts, home-based businesses, overnight visitor accommodation and farm enterprises/markets that showcase local produce.

<u>Zoning</u>

32.04 Mixed Use Zone

Purpose:

- to implement the State Planning Policy Framework and the Local Planning Policy Framework, including the Municipal Strategic Statement and local planning policies
- to provide for a range of residential, commercial, industrial and other uses which complement the mixed-use function of the locality
- to provide for housing at higher densities
- to encourage development that responds to the existing or preferred neighbourhood character of the area
- to facilitate the use, development and redevelopment of land in accordance with the objectives specified in a schedule to this zone.

Decision Guidelines:

• the State Planning Policy Framework and the Local Planning Policy Framework, including the Municipal Strategic Statement and local planning policies.

<u>Overlays</u>

43.01 Heritage Overlay

Purpose:

- to implement the State Planning Policy Framework and the Local Planning Policy Framework, including the Municipal Strategic Statement and local planning policies
- to conserve and enhance heritage places of natural or cultural significance
- to conserve and enhance those elements which contribute to the significance of heritage places
- to ensure that development does not adversely affect the significance of heritage places.

Decision Guidelines:

- the State Planning Policy Framework and the Local Planning Policy Framework, including the Municipal Strategic Statement and local planning policies
- the significance of the heritage place and whether the proposal will adversely affect the natural or cultural significance of the place
- any applicable statement of significance, heritage study and any applicable conservation policy
- whether the location, bulk, form or appearance of the proposed building will adversely affect the significance of the heritage place
- whether the demolition, removal or external alteration will adversely affect the significance of the heritage place

• whether the proposed works will adversely affect the significance, character or appearance of the heritage place.

Particular Provisions

52.06 Car Parking

Purpose:

- to ensure that car parking is provided in accordance with the State Planning Policy Framework and Local Planning Policy Framework
- to ensure the provision of an appropriate number of car parking spaces having regard to the demand likely to be generated, the activities on the land and the nature of the locality
- to promote the efficient use of car parking spaces through the consolidation of car parking facilities
- to ensure that car parking does not adversely affect the amenity of the locality
- to ensure that the design and location of car parking is of a high standard, creates a safe environment for users and enables easy and efficient use.

Decision Guidelines:

- the role and function of nearby roads and the ease and safety with which vehicles gain access to the site
- the ease and safety with which vehicles access and circulate within the parking area
- the provision for pedestrian movement within and around the parking area
- the provision of parking facilities for cyclists and disabled people
- the protection and enhancement of the streetscape
- the provisions of landscaping for screening and shade
- the measures proposed to enhance the security of people using the parking area particularly at night
- the amenity of the locality and any increased noise or disturbance to dwellings and the amenity of pedestrians
- the workability and allocation of spaces of any mechanical parking arrangement
- the design and construction standards proposed for paving, drainage, line marking, signage, lighting and other relevant matters
- the type and size of vehicle likely to use the parking area
- whether the layout of car parking spaces and access lanes is consistent with the specific standards or an appropriate variation
- the need for the required car parking spaces to adjoin the premises used by the occupier/s, if the land is used by more than one occupier
- whether the layout of car spaces and access ways are consistent with Australian Standards AS2890.1-2004 (off street) and AS2890.6-2009 (disabled).

RESOLUTION:

Cr J Ashe / Cr E Lording

That Council issue a Notice of Decision to Grant a Permit allowing the use and development of the land for the purpose of a place of assembly, buildings and works within land affected by a Heritage Overlay and for a reduction of car parking requirements at 13 Rattray Street Yea (Lot 2 PS 330151), subject to the following conditions:

- 1. The layout of the site and the size and type of the proposed buildings and works, including the materials of construction, as shown on the endorsed plan shall not be altered or modified without the consent in writing of the Responsible Authority
- 2. This permit shall expire if the development hereby permitted is not completed and the use commenced within two years of the date hereof, or any extension of such period the Responsible Authority may allow in writing. A request for an extension of time may be made before or within six months after the permit expiry date, where the use or development allowed by the permit has not yet commenced, or within 12 months after the permit expiry date, where the development allowed by the permit lawfully commenced before the permit expired
- 3. The use of the land for the purpose of a place of assembly is restricted to theatre productions, wellness classes, community events, conferences, functions, exhibitions and concerts. The use can only be undertaken between the hours of 9 am to 9 pm Sunday to Thursday and 9 am to 11 pm Friday and Saturday except with the written consent of the Responsible Authority
- 4. The maximum number of patrons onsite cannot exceed 100 except with the written consent of the Responsible Authority
- 5. No external sound amplification equipment or loud speakers are to be used for the purpose of announcement, broadcast, playing of music or similar purpose, to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority
- 6. A register of all events must be kept and provided to the Responsible Authority upon request. The register must include information on:
 - a. the type of event
 - b. the date and duration of the event
 - c. the number of patrons at the event
- 7. All refuse and rubbish associated with the use must be removed from the area at least once weekly, and more often if required by the Responsible Authority
- 8. The use or development hereby permitted shall not cause nuisance or injury to, or prejudicially affect the amenity of the locality, by reason of the transportation of materials, goods and commodities to and from the land, the appearance of any building, works, or materials on the land, the emission of noise, vibration, smell, fumes, smoke, vapour, steam soot, ash, dust, waste water, waste products, grit, oil or the presence of vermin or otherwise
- 9. The emission of noise from the premises including the surrounding environment and carpark areas either during or immediately after the hours permitted, must not cause annoyance to persons beyond the site
- 10. The subject land must be kept neat and tidy at all times and its appearance must not, in the opinion of the Responsible Authority, adversely affect the amenity of the locality
- 11. Outdoor lighting must be designed, baffled and located to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority such that no direct light is emitted outside the boundaries of the subject land.

Infrastructure

12. Prior to the commencement of the use or development a suitable prepared engineering plan detailing the proposed carpark, driveway, earthworks and drainage, must be submitted to the Responsible Authority and receive its endorsement. Endorsed plans must incorporate 28 car parking spaces with a minimum of two accessible car parking spaces

- 13. All stormwater and surface water discharging from the building and works must be conveyed to a point of discharge, approved by the relevant authority. No stormwater discharge from downpipes or overflow from storage tank and surface water shall be directed or caused to be directed in a concentrated form that will cause erosion and or adverse affects within the site or to adjoining land or properties
- 14. The approved works must not cut off natural drainage to adjacent properties
- 15. The existing two vehicular crossings to be used for access and egress must be constructed/upgraded to suit the proposed driveways to the satisfaction of the responsible authority. Construction of new vehicular crossings must comply with the SD 250 of IDM for New Industrial Vehicle Crossing Detail
- 16. The existing northernmost driveway shall not be used to access the car park
- 17. Entrance 3 on the endorsed plan shall be used to enter the car park while Entrance 2 shall be used to exit the car park
- 18. No crossover shall be allowed from View Street unless the road is upgraded to Council's standards
- 19. An application for consent to work on the road reserve is required to be made prior to commencing any works on the road reserve and must comply with the requirements of the *Road Management Act 2004* and associated regulations
- 20. Prior to the construction of works associated with the provision of driveway, drainage and car parking, detailed construction plans in accordance with the endorsed plan, AS 2890 Part 1 Off Street Car Parking and AS 3500 Part 3 Stormwater Drainage and to the satisfaction of the relevant authority must be submitted to and approved by the Responsible Authority. The design and plans must be drawn to scale with levels and dimensions and prepared by a suitable qualified person
- 21. Signs to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority must be provided directing drivers to the area(s) set aside for car parking and must be located and maintained to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority. The area of each sign must not exceed 0.3 square metres
- 22. Prior to the commencement of the use hereby permitted the area(s) set aside for parking of vehicles, access lanes and parking signs as shown on the approved plans must be constructed and completed to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority. Car spaces, access lanes and driveways must be kept available for these purposes at all times.

Notation:

1. The permit holder should be aware that the operation of the use is at all times required, pursuant to the *Environmental Protection Act 1970*, to meet the requirements of the *State Environment Protection Policy (Control of Music Noise from Public Premises) No. N-2*.

CARRIED

Cr R Bowles returned to the Chamber at 6.38 pm.

7.2 PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO SEC 173 AGREEMENT – MULQUEENY LANE, YEA

Attachment(s): Application and Site Plan (refer Attachment 7.2)

Purpose

The purpose of this report is to consider a request by a landowner (applicant) in Mulqueeny Lane Yea to amend a section 173 Agreement under the *Planning and Environment Act 1987*. The current Agreement restricts residents along the west side of Mulqueeny Lane from providing direct access between private lots and the adjacent Yea Racecourse and Recreation Reserve. The proposed amendment, which has been made on behalf of all 16 abutting residents, seeks to remove this access restriction.

Before a section 173 Amendment request is formally considered, the applicant must seek and obtain the in-principle support of Council. This report sets out the context for the Section 173 Agreement and the potential impacts on the future use of the reserve if the amendment were to proceed. The report recommends that in-principle support not be provided.

Officer Recommendation

That Council not provide in-principle support to amend the Section 173 Agreement to allow access from the rear of properties in Mulqueeny Lane into the Yea Racecourse and Recreation Reserve.

Background

When the subdivision was created, one of the issues that needed to be resolved was the common boundary with the Yea Racecourse and Recreation Reserve. Objections from the Reserve Committee of Management, Yea Golf Club and Yea Race Club all raised concerns about direct access from the 16 rear abutting lots proposed at that time. All requested that there be no formal access permitted from the lots onto the reserve because of the risks associated with the existing horse racing and the golf course uses. Consequently, a condition was placed on the subdivision permit requiring an agreement to be entered into under Section 173 of the *Planning and Environment Act 1987* to fully restrict direct access into the reserve. This agreement was put in place in 2005 and is a legal document that continues with the ownership of the land and binds all existing and future owners.

Below is the wording in the agreement relating to access:

The owner covenants and agrees that any Lot which has a western boundary that adjoins the Crown land to the west of the Land, must not have direct access to or from that Crown land, to the satisfaction of the Council.

The reserve currently has three gates along Racecourse Road which facilitate public access. These gates can be closed to restrict access when required, *see Attachment 7.2*.

Council officers were notified that gates had been constructed in the rear fences of a number of properties to facilitate private access to the reserve (in contravention of the Agreement). A meeting was held with representatives of the Committee of Management (CoM) and an inspection was undertaken from the reserve with the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning (DELWP). The inspection indicated that of the 16 properties affected by the Agreement, three were vacant. Of the remaining 13 properties containing a dwelling, seven were found to have unauthorised access. The gates vary from small pedestrian gates to those that can accommodate vehicles. An additional property has installed a gate since the inspection with DELWP.

A formal request, refer to *Attachment 7.2*, has been made by a landowner in Mulqueeny Lane on behalf of all property owners abutting the reserve to amend the Agreement on the following terms:

The Council is so satisfied and permits the Owner limited direct access to and from the Crown land on the conditions following:

- a. the Owner supports the amendment and certifies that the terms of the covenant as amended are accepted under no coercion or duress
- b. the covenant as amended permits private direct access to the Crown land for the Owner's immediate family only
- c. such access is restricted to a single gate for each property, of a size and design acceptable to the Council
- d. such access is not to be used to facilitate business or trade or heavy vehicle access
- e. any gate providing such access will be chained and locked securely on any day a race meet or similar closed event is held
- f. the Owner accepts and agrees that penalties may apply in the case of any infringement of the terms of the covenant as amended
- g. the Owner accepts liability for damage and/or injury proven to be caused by their breach of the covenant as amended.

The process for amending a section 173 Agreement involves two-steps. The first step requires the in-principle support of Council (or CEO acting on behalf of Council). There are no appeal provisions on the merits of the case for a decision at this stage. If in-principle support is given there is a more formal process that would include formal notification of affected persons and appeal provisions.

Discussion

Residents have submitted that private gates would allow direct access onto the reserve for the purpose of exercise, maintenance of the golf course, use for golf buggies and care for those areas immediately adjacent to the rear fences. The supporting submission also states that there have not been any accidents or misdemeanour arising from the existing access gate or access. In relation to errant golf balls, it is submitted that that the fencing does not protect residents from this.

The proposed amendment was sent to the Reserve CoM, DELWP and Country Racing Victoria for comment. The CoM advised that it does not have a consensus in relation to the issue although DELWP is not supportive. The two race clubs are also not supportive and have requested that the gates be removed. The Golf Club is supportive of the proposed amendment.

The CoM requested information from Goulburn Valley Water (GVW) in relation to the use of recycled water for irrigation of both the golf course and racecourse. GVW noted that there is a four hour withholding period between irrigation and public access to the site and any site access must comply with the Environment Protection Authority (EPA) *Guidelines for Environmental Management, Use of Reclaimed Water, Publication 464.2.*

If public access was granted during the use of recycled water (which occurs over a four-month period) there would need to be appropriate signage with access points being locked during that time. Alternatively, if access were to be granted generally, there would need to be signage and resident training and written records kept of this training which could then be audited by the EPA or GVW. GVW have stated that the reserve would not be under risk of losing access to the recycled water as long as the EPA guidelines were complied with.

DELWP have concerns that the proposed amendment will impact on the current and future CoM to control access and does not support private access into the reserve.

Country Racing Victoria does not support the proposed agreement because of a safety issue for riders, horses and residents. Country Racing Victoria has stated that there may be an impact on

increased insurance premiums to the race clubs and further conditions on race days which could make these events challenging to continue.

In summary, the proposal does not have the support of the key agencies responsible for the management of the land (DELWP and Country Racing Victoria) and the CoM has not at this time provided its full support. Given that convenient and reasonable public access is available to the site via a public road, it is not recommended that in-principle support be provided for the amendment. It should be noted that in the Victorian context the provision of private access from rear residential lots to public reserves does not generally constitute orderly planning and raises numerous issues of management and liability over the longer term.

If the recommendation in this report is adopted, Council officers will request that previously constructed gates be reinstated with fencing within an appropriate timeframe to accord with the Agreement and, if necessary, instigate further compliance action if this does not occur.

Council Plan/Strategies/Policies

The Council Plan 2017-2021 Our Prosperity seeks to advocate for improved infrastructure and access to public land to realise social and economic opportunities and support events and attractions that bring visitors to the area.

Relevant Legislation

The power to enter into the agreement arises under section 173 of the *Planning and Environment Act 1987*. This document is a legal contract that is recorded on title and binds future owners and occupiers of the land. The agreement can be enforced in the same way as a permit condition.

The matters a Responsible Authority must consider when considering an amendment to an Agreement include:

- the purpose of the agreement and the purpose of the amendment
- whether any change in circumstances necessitates the amendment
- whether the amendment would disadvantage any person, whether or not a party to the agreement.

It is the view of Council officers that the purpose of the agreement remains relevant and there are no compelling circumstances which necessitates the amendment.

The reserve is zoned Public Park and Recreation Zone under the Murrindindi Planning Scheme. Zone provisions require a Responsible Authority to consider 'the comments of any public land manager having responsibility for the care of management of the land or adjacent land'. The comments from the relevant authorities and land managers in this matter are not supportive of the amendment.

Financial Implications and Risk

There is no direct risk to Council, however removing this agreement would potentially increase the risk for the CoM in relation to retention of recycled water and safety risks on the site. There is also a potential economic risk to the Yea Township if the four annual racing meets are restricted or cancelled.

The proponent and residents would be responsible for legal costs associated with preparing and registering any approved amendments to the Agreement.

Conflict of Interest

There are no declared conflicts of interest by Council officers in this report.

Community and Stakeholder Consultation

Further formal notification and stakeholder consultation would be required if the proposed amendment were to be approved in principle. This would entail formal referral to relevant authorities and agencies and notification to landowners/occupiers.

RESOLUTION:

Cr E Lording / Cr M Rae

That Council not provide in-principle support to amend the Section 173 Agreement to allow access from the rear of properties in Mulqueeny Lane into the Yea Racecourse and Recreation Reserve.

CARRIED

8. OUR PEOPLE

8.1 COMMUNITY GRANTS PROGRAM – MARCH TO MAY 2018

Attachment(s): Community Grant Program 2017-18 Round 3 March – May 2018 Summary (refer Attachment 8.1)

Purpose

This report informs Council of the recommendations made by the delegated Community Grants Assessment Panel (Panel) on applications received in the March to May 2018 round.

Officer Recommendation

That Council endorses the recommendations of the Community Grants Assessment Panel outlined in the following table:

Application	Funding sought	Recommendation
Alexandra Primary School Arts Committee (APSAC)	\$4,800	Application supported in full.
Yea Water Tigers Amateur Swimming Club	\$4,218	Application supported in full.
Fawcett Mechanics Institute Reserve Committee of Management	\$1,750	Application supported in full.
Yea Wetlands Committee of Management	\$4,340	Application held awaiting further information.

Background

The Community Grants Program (Program) provides the opportunity for community groups and organisations to seek funding to support a range of activities and initiatives. The Program is open to community groups, organisations and service clubs undertaking initiatives based in the Murrindindi Shire. Grant applicants can seek a maximum of \$5,000 funding for projects that meet Council's aims, as outlined in the Council Plan 2017-2021 and the Municipal Public Health and Wellbeing Plan. Applicants are required to make a cash and/or in kind contribution to their project.

There are three grant rounds each financial year. The current round, round 3, was open from March to May 2018.

Applications for the current funding round were assessed by the Panel comprising of the Mayor, Deputy Mayor and the Chief Executive Officer. Applications for \$1000 or less are assessed and

approved by the Panel with a report to Council on its decision. Applications for \$1001 or more are assessed by the Panel which makes a recommendation to Council.

Discussion

In total four applications were received from community organisations and schools for the March to May 2018 round. These applications are listed in *Attachment 8.1*.

The Panel recommended supporting the following three applications in full:

- 1. The Alexandra Primary School Arts Committee sought funding for a multifaceted arts project titled Alexandra Beasties. There are three phases to the project, this application seeks funding for Phase 2 only:
 - a. in-class art workshops over Easter for kids (completed)
 - master design for the art work, plus a set of six postcards. Both elements will tell the story of each animal, including its status, habitat and profile through a downloadable app
 - c. installation of the artwork, this includes an out-of-school club for young people who will work with the artist to install the artwork, an exhibition and booklet.

The Alexandra Primary School Arts Committee submitted an application relating to this project in the second round of the Community Grants Program, the panel required further information on the project prior to making a decision and recommended they resubmit. The group revised the application and the project in line with assessment panel feedback.

Council officers will work with the group to clarify plans for phase 3 and the ultimate completion of the project.

2. The Yea Water Tigers Swimming Club sought funding to improve the Yea Swimming Pool facilities by installing four Swim Starting Blocks. This enhances their swim club members ability to train in dive pool entry and supports participation in pennant competitions. Blocks are removable and will be available for use by the Yea Water Tigers Swim Club only, as they have trained instructors to supervise diving. There are minor works that are required to the Yea Swimming pool concourse, these works will be undertaken by a Council approved contractor and overseen by the Infrastructure Assets department.

Council officers will work with the club to ensure blocks are stored and used appropriately.

3. The Fawcett Mechanics Institute Reserve Committee of Management sought funding to purchase a defibrillator package which is to be used by users of the Fawcett Hall and the wider community. In addition, an information session will be held to advise and train the community how to use the defibrillator correctly. This session will also be used as the unveiling of the plaque honouring contribution by Rotary, Lions and Murrindindi Shire Council. The Committee provided evidence of significant support from the broader community and local health services for this initiative.

Council officers will discuss plans for ongoing maintenance and renewal and the position of signage to ensure the resource is visible to the general public.

The Panel recommended that the following application be held over to the next round of Community Grants pending further information:

4. The Yea Wetlands s86 Committee of Management is seeking to install five signs in the Yea Wetlands to highlight and explain the Indigenous use of the flora within the wetland reserve, the signs will include relevant information on the plant, a photograph and Indigenous

name/use of the plant. This initiative aims to support a plan for a self-guided tourist trail in the Wetlands.

Council officers will work with the s86 Committee to seek further information on the broader vision for the tourist trail and to refine their application.

Council officers will provide feedback to applicants in writing and where necessary will contact them directly to discuss their proposals and provide further detail on Council's decision and any further work required.

Council Plan/Strategies/Policies

This matter is consistent with the Council Plan 2017-2021 strategic objective Our People – 'together we will celebrate and encourage diverse, caring and connected communities'.

Relevant Legislation

Implementation of the program is in accordance with Council's policy for the Community Grants Program.

Financial Implications and Risk

The Community Grants budget for the 2017/18 financial year is \$30,000 and this is the third grant round for the year. There has been expenditure of \$18,500 to date. A total of \$10,768 has been recommended for approval in this round, bringing the total expenditure to \$29,268. There are no further grant rounds for this financial year.

Conflict of Interest

There are no declared conflicts of interest by Council officers in relation to this report.

Community and Stakeholder Consultation

The Community Grant applications are assessed by the Community Grants Assessment Panel.

RESOLUTION:

Cr L Dunscombe / Cr J Ashe

That Council endorses the recommendations of the Community Grants Assessment Panel outlined in the following table:

Application	Funding sought	Recommendation
Alexandra Primary School Arts Committee (APSAC)	\$4,800	Application supported in full.
Yea Water Tigers Amateur Swimming Club	\$4,218	Application supported in full.
Fawcett Mechanics Institute Reserve Committee of Management	\$1,750	Application supported in full.
Yea Wetlands Committee of Management	\$4,340	Application held awaiting further information.

CARRIED

9. OUR PROSPERITY

Nil

10 OUR PROMISE

10.1 ANNUAL BUDGET AND STRATEGIC RESOURCE PLAN 2018/19 ADOPTION

Attachment(s): Budget 2018/19 (refer to Attachment 10.1a) Summary of Budget submissions (refer to Attachment 10.1b) Strategic Resource Plan Review 2018/19 (refer to Attachment 10.1c)

Purpose

The report presents the draft 2018/19 Budget and review of the Strategic Resource Plan for adoption by Council.

Officer Recommendation

That having given notice under section 129 of the *Local Government Act 1989* and invited and considered submissions under Section 223 of the *Local Government Act 1989*, the Council resolves:

- 1. that the 2018/19 Budget be adopted as generally exhibited and as attached as *Attachment 10.1a*, noting the following changes:
 - inclusion of a \$30,000 allocation to support the Flowerdale Sports Club in its application for further grant funding to upgrade the Spring Valley Recreation Reserve clubrooms
 - ii) an adjustment of \$26,850 be made to increase the level of funding received from the Victorian Grants Commission relating to Financial Assistance Grants for 2018/19
 - iii) cost increases of \$133,620 relating to the recycling service be included for 2018/19 due to the re-negotiated contract for the ongoing provision of this service
 - iv) the recycling charge be increased by a further \$21 per bin to offset the associated increase with the delivery of the recycling service.
- 2. that responses to issues contained within the 16 submissions received, in respect of the draft 2018/19 Budget, be issued by the Manager Business Services
- 3. that the Chief Executive Officer be authorised to give public notice of this decision to adopt the 2018/19 Budget, in accordance with Section 130(2) of the *Local Government Act 1989*
- 4. that a copy of the adopted 2018/19 Budget be submitted to the Minister for Local Government and copies made available for inspection by the public in accordance with Sections 130(4) and 130(9) of the *Local Government Act 1989*
- 5. to confirm the differential rates, municipal charge and waste service charges as detailed in the 2018/19 Budget per *Attachment 10.1a*
- 6. that the rates officers of Council be authorised to levy and recover the differential rates so declared in accordance with the *Local Government Act 1989*
- 7. that Council note the due dates for rate instalments will be as follows:
 - 30 September 2018
 - 30 November 2018
 - 28 February 2019
 - 31 May 2019
- 8. that Council adopt the revised and updated Strategic Resource Plan as contained in *Attachment 10.1c*.

Background

At the 24 April 2018 Ordinary Meeting of Council, Council endorsed the Draft Annual Budget 2018/19 for the purposes of public exhibition in accordance with the *Local Government Act 1989* (the *Act*).

Submissions were sought from the public and the budget documents were made available at Council offices and on Council's website. The public exhibition period and submission process was advertised in the relevant newspapers. Submissions were due by 1 June 2018.

Acknowledgement letters were sent to the submitters, confirming receipt of their submissions and informing them of the opportunity to attend the Special Meeting of Council on the 13 June 2018 to speak to their submissions if they wished. Five submitters spoke to their submissions at the Special Meeting of Council on 13 June 2018.

Discussion

The Annual Budget for 2018/19 (the Budget) ultimately details the resource requirements and project priorities that are in accordance with the key strategic objectives that have been set in the Council Plan 2017-2021.

The Budget has been developed based on the following principles:

- to increase average rates by no more than 2.15%. This is below the average rate increase allowable under the State Government's Fair Go Rates System (which is 2.25% for the 2018/19 financial year)
- to deliver a balanced budget i.e., a budget where forecast revenue matches forecast expenditure
- to take on no new debt this will reduce existing debt levels to under \$700,000 by 30 June 2019. This represents the lowest level of absolute debt Council has held in more than a decade
- to not reduce service levels and to improve service levels in some areas where they will have a great impact on the community – e.g. Customer Services and Community Safety (formerly known as Local Laws)
- to limit increases to all fees and charges (those within Council's control) and to cap any increases to no more than 2.25%, in line with the rate cap.

For 2018/19, the Budget has identified total operating expenditure of \$34.4 million against forecast revenue of \$34.4 million, which will generate a breakeven result – a balanced budget. Council's cash flows will remain very strong with a projected cash increase of \$1.57 million over the year.

For 2018/19, service levels have been maintained in most areas, though additional resources are proposed to be added to the areas of customer service, community safety and community planning to increase service levels. These proposed additional budget features have been made possible through the delivery of greater operational efficiencies internally in our service provision.

Green waste will also now be free to drop off at any of Council's Resource Recovery Centres (RRC) from 1 July 2018 following strong feedback from the community about the popular green waste amnesty program that has previously been in place.

The Budget also provides another allocation of \$280,000 to fund the Business and Tourism Innovation Grants Program that was successfully launched in the current financial year. These grants will help businesses to prosper, and provide opportunities for growth and expansion. The grants will also support staging of events within the Shire which help encourage people to visit and to showcase all the Shire has to offer. Highlights of the \$7.8 million capital works program that are included in the Budget include:

- Yea High Street irrigation upgrade \$103,000
- Yea Recreation Reserve change room renewal and upgrade \$65,000
- Kinglake Range Neighbourhood House renewal \$45,000
- Kinglake Community Centre renewal and upgrade \$60,000
- Toolangi CJ Dennis Memorial Hall renewal \$40,000
- Strath Creek Playground shade structure \$47,000
- Bollygum Park toilets renewal \$30,000
- Yarck public toilets renewal \$59,000
- Flagpole installations at all Council offices \$27,000
- Library book stock renewal \$100,000
- Roads and bridges renewal & upgrade program \$3.43 million.

It should be noted that since the Draft Budget was placed on public exhibition, Council has been able to advance its negotiations with its recycling services contractor to ensure that the provision of this service will continue next year. The impact of changes in the international recycling market are being felt by local governments across Australia, as the costs associated with the delivery of this service have increased substantially.

As highlighted in the Draft Budget, any increase in costs associated with recycling services need to be passed on to rate payers through an increase in the waste service charge that was detailed in the Draft Budget. It will therefore be necessary to increase the recycling collection charge for 2018/19 by an additional \$21 per bin per annum (or 40 cents per week) from the previously detailed charge of \$90 per bin, to ensure the continuity of this service.

Public Submissions

Sixteen submissions were received in relation to the Draft Budget. All submissions were provided in full to Council and considered at the Special Meeting of Council on 13 June 2018. A summary of the submissions received is attached to this report.

Many of the submissions are able to be addressed through existing resources that are available within next year's budgets, whilst some will require Council officers to undertake further consultation with community members to advance the potential for these suggestions to be undertaken by Council in the future.

One submission that was not able to funded through available resources, that is proposed to be included, is a \$30,000 allocation to support the Flowerdale Sports Club in their grant application to improve the conditions of the change rooms and toilet facilities at the Spring Valley Recreation Reserve. This can be achieved by adjusting the expected amount to be received by Council from the Victorian Grants Commission for 2018/19, in line with adjusted forecasts received since the initial publication of the Draft Budget.

All proposed changes in resources required to accommodate any supported suggestions are included in the recommendation to Council.

Strategic Resource Plan Review

In considering the proposed final budget for 2018/19, the Strategic Resource Plan (SRP) and long term financial plan have also been adjusted to accommodate the changes made for the next financial year.

Key financial assumptions that underpin the longer term financial plan are as follows:

- 1. operating within a rate cap of 2.25% annual rate increases, which is forecast to remain constant over the life of the SRP. The Minister for Local Government sets the rate cap annually and the SRP will be modified based on annual determinations
- 2. fees & charges revenue to increase by 2.25% per annum
- 3. no new borrowings to be undertaken by Council in the next 10 years
- 4. cost of goods and services to increase by 2.5% per annum
- 5. interest on investments to remain at 2.5% per annum, with interest on Council's diminishing borrowings at 4.5% per annum until paid out in 2021/22
- 6. revenue received from grants (for either capital or operating purposes) only included where the source of funds is certain, or reasonably assumed to continue over the life of the plan (e.g. Roads to Recovery or Financial Assistance Grants)
- 7. Council's permanent staffing establishment is forecast to remain relatively stable over the life of the SRP
- 8. a strong focus maintained on balancing Council's asset renewal gap over the life of the SRP.

It is noted that on current assumptions, renewal expenditure will not fully meet renewal requirements over the next 10 years, which will see the infrastructure renewal gap increase. Council is continuing to invest in improved strategic asset management systems and planning, and this combined with enhanced strategic procurement is expected to slow growth in the renewal gap over the ten-year life of the plan.

The Council reviews the SRP on an annual basis and therefore improvements to the management of Council's asset renewal requirements will involve a continual review of the current assumptions. This annual review also enables Council to consider other priorities and initiatives in the context of Council's financial position.

Council Plan/Strategies/Policies

The adoption of the Budget allocates the necessary resource to deliver the initiatives and objectives detailed in the Council Plan 2017-2021 for the upcoming financial year.

Relevant Legislation

The adoption of the Budget is a statutory requirement of the *Local Government Act 1989* and sets the financial framework in which Council will operate for the 2018/19 financial year.

Financial Implications and Risk

Adoption of the Budget and the annual review of the SRP is an essential part of effective corporate governance and has been prepared to ensure any long term financial risks to Council are minimised.

Conflict of Interest

There are no declared conflicts of interest by Council officers in relation to this report.

Community and Stakeholder Consultation

The Draft Budget was made available on Council's website from 1 May 2018 and advertised for public exhibition and submissions in the following publications (next page):

Newspaper / Other	Publishing Date(s)
Newspaper:	
The Alexandra Standard	2 May 2018
Marysville Triangle	4 May 2018
The Local Paper	2 May 2018
The Yea Chronicle	2 May 2018
Hard copies available at:	
Council Office - Alexandra	
Council Office - Kinglake	
Council Office - Yea	
Marysville RAC (VIC)	
Eildon Community Resource Centre	

The Budget was on public display for 28 days in accordance with statutory obligations, prior to the Special Meeting of 13 June 2018 to consider and hear public submissions.

RESOLUTION:

Cr E Lording / Cr L Dunscombe

That having given notice under section 129 of the *Local Government Act 1989* and invited and considered submissions under Section 223 of the *Local Government Act 1989*, the Council resolves:

- 1. that the 2018/19 Budget be adopted as generally exhibited and as attached as *Attachment 10.1a*, noting the following changes:
 - inclusion of a \$30,000 allocation to support the Flowerdale Sports Club in its application for further grant funding to upgrade the Spring Valley Recreation Reserve clubrooms
 - an adjustment of \$26,850 be made to increase the level of funding received from the Victorian Grants Commission relating to Financial Assistance Grants for 2018/19
 - iii) cost increases of \$133,620 relating to the recycling service be included for 2018/19 due to the re-negotiated contract for the ongoing provision of this service
 - iv) the recycling charge be increased by a further \$21 per bin to offset the associated increase with the delivery of the recycling service.
 - v) that the fee for commercial or non-resident green waste is to be maintained at \$14 per cubic metre.
- 2. that responses to issues contained within the 16 submissions received, in respect of the draft 2018/19 Budget, be issued by the Manager Business Services
- 3. that the Chief Executive Officer be authorised to give public notice of this decision to adopt the 2018/19 Budget, in accordance with Section 130(2) of the *Local Government Act 1989*
- 4. that a copy of the adopted 2018/19 Budget be submitted to the Minister for Local Government and copies made available for inspection by the public in accordance with Sections 130(4) and 130(9) of the *Local Government Act 1989*
- 5. to confirm the differential rates, municipal charge and waste service charges as detailed in the 2018/19 Budget per *Attachment 10.1a*

- 6. that the rates officers of Council be authorised to levy and recover the differential rates so declared in accordance with the *Local Government Act 1989*
- 7. that Council note the due dates for rate instalments will be as follows:
 - 30 September 2018
 - 30 November 2018
 - 28 February 2019
 - 31 May 2019
- 8. that Council adopt the revised and updated Strategic Resource Plan as contained in *Attachment 10.1c*.

CARRIED

10.2 PROCUREMENT POLICY REVIEW – 2017/18

Attachment(s): Procurement Policy – Revised 2018 (refer Attachment 10.2)

Purpose

The purpose of this report is to seek Council's endorsement of the revised Procurement Policy (Policy).

Officer Recommendation

That Council adopts the revised Procurement Policy as contained in Attachment 10.2.

Background

Council's Procurement Policy was last reviewed and adopted in May 2017. It is a requirement under Section 186A of the *Local Government Act 1989* (the *Act*) that a council must review the current procurement policy at least once in every financial year.

Regular review of the Policy encourages continuous improvement so that Council's ways of doing business and procurement processes represent best practice.

Discussion

The most recent review of Councils current Policy in May 2017 identified a number of areas for improvement. As such, the 2018/19 review is not proposing significant changes to the Policy that was well reviewed last year, and that has been implemented and understood by the wider business community that seeks to engage with Council for the provision of goods or services. Council's Policy has also been compared against those of other councils, and against best practice procurement guidelines issued by the Municipal Association of Victoria (MAV) and state and federal governments.

Two key changes are proposed for inclusion in the revision of the Policy. Firstly, it is proposed to add section 5.4 outlining Council's support for improved sustainability outcomes and to ensure that environmental and resource consumption principles are taken into consideration in procurement decisions. Sustainable procurement is an issue that is receiving greater focus across the public sector, and it also aligns with a number of strategic initiatives highlighted in the Council Plan regarding Council's desire for improved environmental outcomes.

The proposed section provides Council officers with the opportunity to include sustainable criteria in procurement processes, whilst ensuring that value for money and the capability of providers are still considered before purchasing goods and services.

Secondly, to provide greater clarity to the business community regarding Council's position on not accepting late submissions to a tender process. Although not a frequent occurrence, it was felt

that having a more definitive statement in the Policy would provide both submitters to any tender process, and Council officers responsible for managing a procurement process, greater clarity regarding Council's position on accepting late submissions and the requirement to run a process with integrity.

There have also been some minor changes to language and structure of the document to ensure that it is consistent with Council's current policy template and to ensure that it is aligned with the Council Plan 2017-2021, which was adopted after the Policy was updated in 2017.

Council Plan/Strategies/Policies

This matter is consistent with the Council Plan 2017-2021 Our Promise:

- strategy 4.3 ensure the range of services we provide and the way we provide them are best aligned with community priorities and Council's resources
- strategy 4.4 commit to developing a stronger customer focused culture that makes us easier to deal with.

Relevant Legislation

Review of the Policy is required under Section 186A of the *Act* which requires local councils to have a procurement policy and to review it each financial year. Once Council approves the Policy it must comply with the Policy and make it publicly available.

Financial Implications and Risk

Council's Policy sets procedural controls to protect against financial, probity, fraud and corruption risk whilst also ensuring that resources are used efficiently and the removal of unnecessary barriers or costs to doing business with Council.

Conflict of Interest

There are no declared conflicts of interest by Council officers in relation to this report.

Community and Stakeholder Consultation

Consultation with the community is not considered to be required as the purpose of the statutory review of the Policy is to ensure that it remains compliant with the *Act* and consistent with best practice. Upon approval, the revised Policy will become a publically available document available at Council offices and on Council's website.

RESOLUTION:

Cr M Rae / Cr L Dunscombe

That Council adopts the revised Procurement Policy as contained in *Attachment 10.2*.

CARRIED

10.3 AUDIT ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES AND APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR

Attachment(s): 2018-05-25 Audit Advisory Committee Minutes (refer Attachment 10.3)

The minutes of the Audit Advisory Committee Meeting held on 25 May 2018 are attached *(Attachment 10.3)* for receiving.

At this meeting, Ms Michele Sheward was nominated and endorsed by the Committee to be its Chairperson for 2018/19, subject to ratification of Council at its next Ordinary Meeting.

Ms Sheward has served two consecutive years as Chair of the Committee commencing in 2017/18. Under the Committee Charter, the term of the Chair is to be 12 months, with a maximum of three consecutive years with a break of at least one year if three consecutive terms have been served.

Officer Recommendation

That Council

- 1. note and receive the minutes of the Audit Advisory Committee meeting held on 25 May 2018 (*Attachment 10.3*).
- 2. endorse the election of Ms Michele Sheward as Chairperson of Council's Audit Advisory Committee for the 2018/19 financial year.

RESOLUTION:

Cr R Bowles / Cr L Dunscombe That Council

- 1. note and receive the minutes of the Audit Advisory Committee meeting held on 25 May 2018 (*Attachment 10.3*).
- 2. endorse the election of Ms Michele Sheward as Chairperson of Council's Audit Advisory Committee for the 2018/19 financial year.

11. NOTICES OF MOTIONS

Nil

12. MATTERS DEFERRED FROM PREVIOUS MEETING

Nil

13. URGENT BUSINESS

Nil

14. COUNCILLOR AND PORTFOLIO REPORTS

<u>RESOLUTION:</u> Cr E Lording / Cr J Ashe That the three minutes allocated for Cr M Rae's Councillor and Portfolio Report be extended to six minutes.

CARRIED

14.1 CR MARGARET RAE - LAND USE PLANNING PORTFOLIO

Changes to Planning Regulations

The *Planning and Environment Amendment (Objectors Review Timing) Regulations 2018* were made by the Governor in Council on 13 June 2018 and come into effect on 1 July 2018. These amend the 2015 regulations to standardise the point at which the time starts when an objector can apply for review. The number of days has been increased from 21 to 28 days to take account of the new starting point and changes to Australia Post's delivery time.

The Planning for Sustainable Animal Industries reform has been ongoing for several years. Following the most recent work to review land use definitions, today it was announced by the State Government that an agreement has been reached with stakeholders on a future streamlined planning process. This now has to be legislated and is anticipated to be completed by September. We look forward to having more certainty in the planning process and to the accompanying guidelines.

Documentation relating to the changes is now available. These comprise of the Victorian Government's response to consultation on the planning reforms, key reform information sheets and frequently asked questions. These can be found at http://agriculture.vic.gov.au/agriculture/livestock/2018-planning-reform

Municipal Association of Victoria (MAV) Planning Committee

This was a very interesting and stimulating meeting. Topics included 'An update of planning activities by the MAV'. MAV works closely with a wide range of agencies and Local Government to provide input into key initiatives.

Smart Planning Integrated Policy Framework

The framework proposed addresses the disconnect between state and local policy in the current planning scheme format. The new framework will also incorporate the regional planning policy and will have the Municipal Planning Strategy at the front with narrative and illustrations containing critical messages, be based on policy, more focused and targeted and be structured with the relative statement for state, regional and local being placed in sequence for easy access and comprehension and to remove repetition.

The Local Planning Policy will be based on policy, focus on land use planning/development, not include rationale or discussion, not include redundant or irrelevant material and not be repetitive.

This represents significant cultural change. Two pilots of the new Integrated Policy Framework (IPF) have been undertaken, one with a metropolitan council and one with a regional council. An unintended consequence of this is what is now seen as the development of a very effective planning scheme review tool.

There were many questions in relation to this and the IPF's further development, however answers to many of these are not yet available including those regarding funding and support, particularly for small rural councils.

Floodplain Development Guidelines - the primary users will be Catchment Management Authority's and Melbourne Water when applications are referred to them. The guidelines aim to address inconsistency and transparency in advice across catchment areas. Guidelines will remain that for the time being, potentially to be added into the planning scheme at a later date.

Peri Urban Group of Rural Council's (PUGRC) Meeting

This meeting brings together seven councils on the outer edge of Melbourne that share similar issues and concerns. Items discussed included:

- Victoria Planning Authority (VPA) update
 - VPA-PUGRC Partnership Agreement draft agreement has been circulated for comment
 - Streamlining for Growth update on current projects and applications for the next round of funding. We have one project under way and have submitted an application for consideration in the next round. Assessment is currently underway and the outcomes are anticipated shortly
 - VPA and Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning (DELWP) are working together to define the next Ministerial Statement of Expectations. This will set out VPA's work program across Victoria.
- DELWP update
 - Infrastructure Contributions Plan

- Cladding Audit progress update
- presentation on the Foodprint II Agriculture in the peri urban research project.

MAV Rural and Regional Planning Conference

This annual conference was held in Shepparton and was very well attended. There was a range of interesting and informative presentations, including:

- Regional Liveability
- Empowering Aboriginal Voices
- Community Consultation
- Assessing Renewables
- AirBnB in the planning system
- Event Tourism
- Planning for natural hazards
- two field trips
- sessions by VPA, Victorian Civil and Administrative Tribunal (VCAT), Planning Panels Year in Review, Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources (DEDJTR), other councils and consultants.

It was a very wide ranging and diverse conference. Papers are available on the MAV website.

In Addition to Portfolio Matters

I have attended a number of activities representing Council, including:

- Truck Drivers' Memorial Service this annual memorial for truck drivers gives a unique opportunity for families from across Victoria to come together and share their memories
- Truck, Ute & Rod Show now an iconic event in our community that was very well attended in spite of it being a very cold day.
- Alexandra Quilt Show this is a terrific event that showcases such a high standard of skills that just gets better every year
- National Reconciliation Week Celebration held at the Y Water Discovery Centre
- Coffee with Council together with Council's Chief Executive Officer, Craig Lloyd, we had our first coffee with Council in Alexandra. It was good to spend time with members of the community and to hear about what is important to them.

14.2 CR JACKIE ASHE - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PORTFOLIO

In the past month many events and gatherings have taken place:

- Reconciliation Week event afternoon tea took place at the Y Water Discovery Centre in partnership with Taungurung Clans Aboriginal Corporation
- Kinglake Fun Run Council involved as a major sponsor and well attended
- Alexandra Truck, Rod & Ute Show including Councils Library and Customer Service vehicle and Community Safety vehicles in attendance
- Regional Heart of Victoria stand at the Good Food and Wine Show with Murrindindi Shire representation from Council officers and Holmesglen at Eildon. Great conversations had with show attendees
- imminent refresh of Heart of Victoria website due in coming weeks

- rapid growth of Discover Dindi social media channels continues, outstripping surrounding tourism regions with greater post engagement on Instagram and Facebook. Facebook now has over 5,500 followers
- YouTube Showcasing Murrindindi Business Awards Winners done by James Anderson Turbo 360 in conjunction with Council. You can find these on social media also:
 - Integrity Real Estate <u>https://www.youtube.com/watch?v= ZWnBHEapVU&t=29s</u>
 - Sedona Estate <u>https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=u23Wh3UBAwQ&t=31s</u>
 - Polished Perfection Windows -<u>https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=tLXvBG9xpyQ&t=23s</u>

14.3 CR ERIC LORDING - INFRASTRUCTURE AND WASTE PORTFOLIO

The following is an update regarding infrastructure:

- Yea and District Children's centre renovations have commenced
- sealing of Wattle and Pendlebury Streets is nearing completion
- Eildon Jameson blackspot safety upgrades are complete
- kerb and channel works in Station Street Yea are underway and will be completed shortly
- construction of all the Bushfire Memorials are underway with work on the Kinglake memorial to commence this week
- Thornton Recreational Reserve Building upgrade will be completed this week
- Yea Recreation Reserve toilet block refurbishment to open this week
- two new community busses have been delivered and the new Community Safety vehicles are now on the road.

VicRoads are working with Council officers to help clarify the Grant Street intersection to alleviate the confusion that drivers are experiencing.

It is pot hole season. During the wet season pot holes may appear in roads and the Shire engineers are regularly performing pot hole filling where required. It should be understood that pot hole filling is not a long term solution and have a life of approximately three to four months. Grading of unsealed roads similarly is not possible as it will remove the crushed rock pavement and will result in worse outcomes. Please continue to advise Council of roads needing attention and Council will endeavour to attend to potholes quickly.

Council is working to a conclusion of negotiations with our recycling providers.

14.4 CR LEIGH DUNSCOMBE - CORPORATE AND CUSTOMER SERVICES PORTFOLIO

Tonight we have adopted the budget for the 2018-19 financial year and we can all let out a collective sigh of relief. It represents the culmination of hundreds of hours of consultation and preparation and I would like to thank all those involved, especially those community members and groups who provided their input and submissions for consideration and guidance. While we were not able to incorporate everything that everybody would like in this year's budget we have been able to accommodate many of them and reserve others for future consideration.

The whole budget development process has revolved around three main principles, sound financial management, equity and the aspirations of our communities and I am pleased to say that I think we have hit the mark. A balanced budget with one of the lowest rate increases in the

state, nearly \$8 million of capital works, \$280,000 for business innovation and tourism, free green waste disposal at all of our resource recovery centres (RRC's), no new debt and absolute debt below \$1 million within the year. There are many more highlights in this budget and I look forward to putting them all into action over the next 12 months.

Once again, thank you to all involved and congratulations on a job well done.

I will note, as I have on several previous occasions, that there is a real possibility that some grant funding that is included in the 2018/19 budget, may be received between now and the end of this current financial, i.e. sometime in the next three days. I say it again, if that were to happen, it would have no real effect on Council finances, however it would change the headline budget figure for both this current financial year (by implying a surplus) and the next financial year (by implying a deficit of an equivalent amount). They balance each other out and hence no real effect on finances, just headlines.

14.5 CR REBECCA BOWLES - NATURAL ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE CHANGE PORTFOLIO

The launch of the Dindi Bulk Buy Scheme at the Yea Shire Hall on 16 June was a success with approximately 60 people attending the event. After the event 50 people registered. Further community workshops have been scheduled for Alexandra on 4 July, Kinglake on 7 July, Marysville 4 August and Yea on 15 August.

RESOLUTION:

Cr E Lording / Cr R Bowles That the three minutes allocated for Cr S McAulay Councillor and Portfolio Reports be extended to six minutes.

CARRIED

14.6 CR SANDICE MCAULAY – COMMUNITY SERVICES PORTFOLIO

Community Planning Sessions

The community working groups (in Marysville, Alexandra, Yea and Kinglake) have each met twice. I was so impressed with the enthusiasm of the participants when I attended the second Marysville session. The information collected through this process is currently being collated to form the draft Community Planning Framework.

The working group process also provided the opportunity to ask the community to name the community planning project 'Towards 2030 – Planning Our Future'.

Aged and Disability Community Information Sessions

Council are working with Menzies Support Services to deliver community information sessions on the introduction of the National Disability Insurance Scheme (NDIS) and changes to aged care services.

Four sessions are being held across the Shire:

- Alexandra 3 July from 2-4 pm at the Alexandra RSL
- Marysville 5 July from 2-4 pm at the Vibe Hotel in Marysville
- Kinglake 10 July from 2-4 pm at the Kinglake Community Centre
- Yea 10 July from 6-8 pm at the Council Chambers in Yea.

The sessions provide an opportunity for community members to familiarise themselves with the coming changes and help them prepare.

Children's Services

Council's Facilitated Playgroup Program has hit the ground running. The Kinglake Playgroup has been established and is attracting an average 10 families each week.

A new Bush Playgroup will be starting in term three at the back of the Buxton Primary School.

Maternal and Child Health Services

Council have introduced immunisation sessions to support the delivery of the free flu vaccine for children four years and under. All other childhood immunisations on the government schedule are also available through these sessions. The sessions have been well attended and we have received positive feedback from the community.

Parent education sessions on Managing Sleep and Enjoying your Terrific Toddler have been held in June in Kinglake and Alexandra.

10 Year Anniversary 2009 Bushfires

Council officers have been liaising with key agencies and the community to support planning for the 10 year anniversary of the 2009 bushfires, with a particular focus on seeking information on potential mental health needs. I have attended the planning sessions conducted by the Triangle Community Foundation and they have been very well attended.

Marysville Information and Regional Arts Centre

The Marysville Tourism and Arts Centre now has a new name, Marysville Information and Regional Arts Centre (MIRA).

Construction is moving along well and is due to finish by the end of July. A launch is being planned for November.

As the MIRA is getting closer to the opening of the new centre, Marysville Triangle Business and Tourism (MTBT) hosted a very successful planning meeting to start looking at the future of the MTBT. They are obviously going to go through a huge change of direction and it is a good opportunity to look at the future e.g.:

- what will the membership look like in the future?
- what will the direction be?
- how will they continue to market the triangle region?

Youth Services

A school holiday program will be running in partnership with Ellimatta Youth Services.

A new after school program will be running in Alexandra for one afternoon a week for 13-18 year olds in term three.

Library Services

I am very pleased to announce that the Murrindindi Library and Customer Service van is back on the road, and is now rolling out services to communities across the Shire. It also made its debut at the Alexandra Truck, Ute and Rod show in June. Those who have seen it will know the van has a brand new look with a new external wrap which looks fabulous. Our thanks to the Victorian Government's Living Libraries Infrastructure Program for the grant which has enabled the van's rejuvenation. We hope to be to announce a Ministerial launch of the van in July soon.

Other Meetings and Events

I have had the pleasure of attending include:

 Municipal Emergency Management Planning Committee (MEMPC) - VIC SES Regional Emergency Management Operations Officer John Newlands attended the MEMPC on the 24 May. He and local SES Controller Peter Weeks presented the Council with a certificate of appreciation for their storm preparation efforts prior to the rain event on 1 December 2017 where Council officers prepared more than 500 sandbags, which they made available to the community and SES units within the Shire to assist with emergency response activities.

- the first Murrindindi Reconciliation Week afternoon tea at the lovely Y Water Discovery Centre
- outstanding Coffee with Council at Marysville where about 40 community members came and had a great chat
- the official opening of the Alexandra Truck, Ute and Rod show with Cr M Rae

- 34 -

- the Marysville Community Golf and Bowls Club Committee dinner where members were keen to acknowledge the great support work that Council officers provide with special recognition to Stuart Coller
- Rotary Alexandra Changeover Dinner where I participated in the Mayors absence. Once again members were keen to recognise the great work of the outdoor Council officers particularly at the moment with their tree planting in Leckie Park.
- launch of the Dindi Bulk Buy at Yea

RESOLUTION:

Cr L Dunscombe / Cr E Lording That the three minutes allocated for Cr C Bisset Councillor and Portfolio Reports be extended to six minutes.

CARRIED

14.7 CR CHARLOTTE BISSET – MAYORAL REPORT

Thank you for the opportunity to present my report. It's hard to believe the middle of the year has been and gone.

The Community Planning from last month continued and I along with Cr R Bowles, attended the Yea session, where more ideas on building the framework of the community plan were developed with insightful inputs from community members. The feedback from these community planning sessions are now being collated by Council officers and will be detailed in further reports.

Cr's S McAulay, R Bowles and L Dunscombe and my daughter Lilly and I attended the Ellimatta Youth Fun run in Kinglake on Sunday 27 May. It was a perfect morning for a run around the beautiful area. Lilly and I joined just under 200 runners and participated in the event which had three options of different length runs. Coinciding with the run was the fantastic artisans market in Kinglake.

It was a pleasure to speak at the Taungurung Clans Aboriginal Corporation's reconciliation week afternoon tea held at the Y Water Discovery Centre during reconciliation week from the 27 May to 3 June. The theme this year was 'don't keep history a mystery'. Thanks to Angela Ten Buren for an inspiring story about her family history in the area.

I feel very honoured to have been selected to sit on the State Minister for Local Government -Marlene Kairouz's, Mayoral Advisory Panel. I along with 11 other Mayors from around the state attended the early June meeting, the first of three proposed meetings. The purpose of this panel is to advise the Minister of priorities facing Local Government.

As people may be aware there has recently been a round of 'Coffee with Council' across all seven Council wards. Coffee with Council is an opportunity for residents to meet with their ward

Councillor and the Council's Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to discuss their ideas, concerns and ask questions. The Koriella Ward coffee with Council was held at Yarck.

It was fantastic to be invited to be a part of the Rubicon Outdoor Education Centre's 40th birthday celebrations. The 40 years of contributing to the education of Victorian students is a great milestone. Rubicon Outdoor Education Centre site in the Rubicon Valley was established when the State Education Department took over the facility that was the original SEC accommodation.

CEO (Craig Lloyd) and myself made a day of it, visiting the Yea Community House, Toolangi Castella and District Community House and Kinglake Ranges Neighbourhood House. It was great to hear how these locally run organisations support communities via their various activities and services. A big shout out to Carly and Nat, Fiona and Kerry and Vicky for their wonderful work coordinating these houses. We finished this day with a citizenship ceremony in Kinglake for Vivian Sguerzi, Vivian was accompanied by her family and was very excited to be making the commitment to become an Australian Citizen.

All Councillors took a break from our regular Wednesday briefing to drop into the Alexandra Standard Newspapers to join in with the community and staff to celebrate their 150th birthday. What an achievement, congratulations!

The Queen's birthday weekend was a huge weekend in our shire and I attended several events. These included the opening of the Lake Mountain's white season and their new magic carpet ride beside the toboggan slope. The lead up to the main event on the Sunday, Alexandra Truck, Ute and Rod show, included Alexandra Truck memorial service and the Alexandra Truck Show sponsors dinner. The memorial was a solemn reminder of the sacrifices people within the transport industry make in order to move items around our vast country. I was personally very touched by this service and have anew found respect for the trucking industry. The Alexandra Truck, Ute and Rod started with the usual foggy morning but a great day was had by all with over a predicted 13,000 people enjoying the show. That evening the action didn't stop as I attended the 100 lapper of the Alexandra Speedway. There was a huge crowd there with over 3,000 people braving the chilly night to watch these cars.

The launch of the Dindi Bulk Buy was held in Yea. This initiative was inspired by the success of the Strathbogie Shire Councils 'Bogie Bulk Buy'. The Murrindindi Shire Council has partnered with the Yarra Energy Foundation (YEF) to bring the bulk buy to our area. It was great to see around 60 people at the launch, with a passion for wanting to make a difference for the environment and their hip pocket!

Craig Lloyd and I spent three days last week in Canberra at the National Local Government Association, National Assembly. We used this opportunity while in Canberra to knock on the doors at Parliament House. We secured meetings with the offices of, Rob Mitchell, Senator Bridgette McKenzie, Bill Shorten, Cathy McGowan and Lisa Chesters.

Last Friday, Cr's M Rae, J Ashe, S McAulay and myself attended along with over 370 local residents, the Kellock Lodge public meeting held at the Alexandra Town Hall. Councils interest in this issue to is listen to both sides and to ensure the best outcome for the community.

On Monday night this week, Cr's S McAulay and R Bowles and myself attended the Yea Community Bank-Community Forum. This was a well attended event which was facilitated by the Bendigo Bank looking for community ideas. So far in the eight years the Yea Community Bank branch has been operating, they have donated \$180,000 to the community. The Yea Community Bank has an ATM in Eildon and an agency in Alexandra. Well done to the directors of the bank who are all local people.

15. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT

My report this month focuses on a few key matters.

Visit to Canberra

I was pleased to visit the National Local Government Conference in Canberra last week with Mayor Bisset, and hear from key speakers on a range of Local Government related issues.

We also secured meetings with Ministers, Members of Parliament & Ministerial Officers to discuss a range of issues including the adequacy of funding for roads, revitalisation of rural communities and other infrastructure funding.

Kellock Lodge

I recently Chaired a public meeting at the Alexandra Shire Hall regarding Kellock Lodge and changes to the governance arrangements proposed by the owners, the Diocese of Wangaratta and Bishop John Parkes.

It was clear that our community is passionate about the Kellock Lodge with 378 community members attending. This connection to Kellock Lodge and the concerns over its future were recognised by the passing of two Motions.

Council continues to work with all parties to ensure community concerns are addressed, high quality care is maintained, and that Kellock Lodge is preserved for the Alexandra and Murrindindi Shire communities.

Country Fire Authority

A public meeting with regard to the merger of the Urban and Rural Fire Brigades in Alexandra is planned for Monday 9 July, 7 pm at the Alexandra Shire Hall. Councillors and Council officers will be in attendance.

16. ASSEMBLIES OF COUNCILLORS

Purpose

This report presents the records of assemblies of Councillors for 23 May 2018 to 13 June 2018, for Council to note in accordance with Section 80A of the *Local Government Act 1989* (the *Act*).

Officer Recommendation

That Council receives and notes the record of assemblies of Councillors from 23 May 2018 to 13 June 2018.

Background

In accordance with Section 80A of the *Act*, written assemblies of Councillors are to be reported at an Ordinary Meeting of Council.

An assembly of Councillors includes advisory committees, where one or more Councillors were present, along with planned or scheduled meetings involving at least half of the Councillors and a Council officer.

A Councillor who has a conflict of interest at assemblies of Councillors, must disclose the conflict of interest, and leave the meeting while the matter is being discussed.

Discussion

A written record is required to be kept of every assembly of Councillors, including the names of all Councillors and staff at the meeting, a list of the matters considered, any conflict of interest disclosed by a Councillor, and whether a Councillor who disclosed a conflict left the meeting.

Meeting Name/Type	Council Meeting Pre-Meet		
Meeting Date:	23 May 2018		
Matters Discussed:	Community Recognition Business and Tourism Innovation Grants –		
	Industry and Economy Growth - Evaluation Panel Report		
	 Business and Tourism Innovation Grants – Business Growth or Establishment - 		
	Evaluation Panel Report		
	 Business and Tourism Innovation Grants – Business Support - Evaluation Panel Report 		
	 Business Support - Evaluation Failer Report Business and Tourism Innovation Grants – Events Kick Starter - Evaluation Panel Report 		
	6. Audit Advisory Committee Appointment		
Councillor Attendees:	Cr C Bisset, Cr S McAulay, Cr L Dunscombe, Cr R Bowles, Cr J Ashe, Cr M Rae, Cr E Lording		
Council Officer Attendees	C Lloyd, M Chesworth, S McConnell, S Brown, D Jackson, M Thomas		
Conflict of Interest Disclosures: Nil			

The following summary details are for 23 May 2018 to 13 June 2018:

Meeting Name/Type	Briefing Session		
Meeting Date:	6 June 2018		
Matters Discussed:	 Recreation and Open Space Assets and Service Review 		
	 Goulburn River Valley Tourism - Memorandum of Understanding 		
	3. Visy Contract Matters		
Councillor Attendees:	Cr C Bisset, Cr S McAulay, Cr L Dunscombe, Cr R		
	Bowles, Cr J Ashe, Cr M Rae, Cr E Lording		
Council Officer Attendees	C Lloyd, M Chesworth, S McConnell, N McNamara, S		
	Coller		
Conflict of Interest Disclosures: Nil			

			· · · ·			
Meeting Name/Type		Briefing Session				
Meeting Dat	e:	13 June 2018				
Matters Disc	cussed:	1. Chamber works				
		2. Procurement Policy Review 2017/18				
		3. GRVT Board Meeting Update				
		4. Proposed Amendments to Sec 173 Agreement -				
		Mulqueeny Lane Yea				
		5.				
		Application 2018/6				
		6. Budget Submissions Discussion				
Councillor Attendees:			Cr C Bisset, Cr S McAulay, Cr L Dunscombe, Cr R			
		Bowles, Cr J Ashe, Cr M Rae, Cr E Lording				
Council Officer Attendees			C Lloyd, M Chesworth, S McConnell, J Canny, A Bond,			
		D Jackson				
Conflict of Interest Disclosures: Yes						
Matter No. Councillor making			Was a vote	Did the	When? Before or	
disclosure		-	taken?	Councillor	after discussion	
				leave the		
				room?		
5 Cr R Bowles			No	Yes	Before	

Council Plan/Strategies/Policies

This matter is consistent with the Council Plan 2017-2017 Our Promise strategy to "Expand our communication".

Relevant Legislation

For full details of Council's requirement for assemblies of Councillors, refer to Section 80A of the *Local Government Act 1989.*

Financial Implications and Risk

There are no financial or risk implications.

Conflict of Interest

Any conflicts of interest are noted in the assemblies of Councillors tables listed above.

RESOLUTION:

```
Cr E Lording / Cr M Rae
```

That Council receives and notes the record of assemblies of Councillors from 23 May 2018 to 13 June 2018.

CARRIED

<u>17.</u> <u>SEALING REGISTER</u>

File Reference	Date Seal Affixed	Description of Documents	Signatures of Persons Sealing
CONT17/4	21 May 2018	Formal Instrument of Agreement between Murrindindi Shire Council and Fineblade Pty Ltd for Civil Works Panel	Craig Lloyd Cr Charlotte Bisset
SF/1176	25 May 2018	Deed of Variation of Lease between Murrindindi Shire Council and Leadbeater Group Pty Ltd for part of building known as the Kinglake Rebuilding Advisory Centre	Craig Lloyd Cr Sandice McAulay
SF/3020	28 May 2018	Sublease for 19 Taggerty-Thornton Road, Taggerty between Minister for Education (Landlord), Murrindindi Shire Council (Tenant) and Taggerty Community Progress Group Inc (Subtenant)	Craig Lloyd Cr Margaret Rae
SF/779	1 June 2018	Access Licence Agreement at Via Halls Flat Road, Alexandra between Murrindindi Shire Council (Owner) and Optus Mobile Pty Limited (Optus)	Craig Lloyd Cr Charlotte Bisset
CONT17/4	8 June 2018	Formal Instrument of Agreement between Murrindindi Shire Council and Keath's Excavations Pty Ltd for Civil Works Panel	Craig Lloyd Cr Sandice McAulay
CONT17/4	18 June 2018	Formal Instrument of Agreement between Murrindindi Shire Council and Marchese Excavations and Bin Hire Pty Ltd for Civil Works Panel	Craig Lloyd Cr Charlotte Bisset

Officer Recommendation

That the list of items to which the Council seal has been affixed be noted.

RESOLUTION:

Cr M Rae / Cr L Dunscombe

That the list of items to which the Council seal has been affixed be noted.

CARRIED

<u>18.</u> <u>CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS</u>

The Local Government Act 1989 section 89(2) allows Council to resolve to close a meeting to the public to consider confidential information relating to any of the following matters:

- (a) personnel matters
- (b) the personal hardship of any resident or ratepayer
- (c) industrial matters
- (d) contractual matters
- (e) proposed developments
- (f) legal advice
- (g) matters affecting the security of Council property
- (h) any other matter which the Council or special committee considers would prejudice the Council or any person
- (i) a resolution to close the meeting to members of the public.

Where possible Council will resolve to make public any decision it makes in a closed meeting where the resolution does not disclose confidential information. There may be occasions where Council cannot make its decision public.

The report on the Quarry Products Panel – CONT18/5 is being considered in the closed part of this meeting because it is considered under S89(2)(d) contractual matters.

Recommendation

That Council, in accordance with the *Local Government Act 1989* section 89(2)(d), resolve to close the meeting to the members of the public:

• Quarry Products Panel – CONT18/5

RESOLUTION:

Cr S McAulay / Cr M Rae That the meeting be closed to the public pursuant to s.89(2)(d) of the *Local Government Act 1989* due to contractual matter.

CARRIED

The meeting closed to the public at 7.36 pm

The meeting re-opened to the public at 7.41 pm.

During the closed section of the meeting, Council resolved to bring the following resolution into the ordinary meeting.

18.3 QUARRY PRODUCTS PANEL – CONT18/5

RESOLUTION:

Cr E Lording / Cr L Dunscombe That Council:

1. appoint Castella Quarries Pty Ltd, Lima South Quarries Pty Ltd and Norville Nominees Pty Ltd (trading as Euroa Quarries) to the Council's Quarry Supply Panel

- 2. note that the estimate value of the contracts (combined) is \$200,000 per year over a maximum six (6) year period.
- 3. authorise the Chief Executive Officer to extend the panel contract beyond the initial term subject to satisfactory performance
- 4. authorise the signing and sealing of the contracts for the supply of quarry products for the recommended panel contractors.

CARRIED

At the Special Meeting of Council on 13 June 2018, Council resolved to release the resolution for agenda item 5.2, Visy Contract Matters, to the minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held on 27 June 2018.

VISY CONTRACT MATTERS

RESOLUTION:

Cr E Lording / Cr L Dunscombe That Council:

- 1. accept the offer as outlined in Option 1 of Visy Paper Pty Ltd's ("Visy") letter dated 18 May 2018, as modified in Visy's letter dated 5 June 2018
- 2. authorise the signing and sealing of a variation to contract number CONT14/12 Recyclables Acceptance and Sorting Contract to give effect to the Visy offer for the period from 28 March 2018
- 3. note that Council officers may separately agree a variation to contract number CONT14/2 Recyclables Acceptance and Sorting Contract for the period 1 March 2018 to 27 March 2018 consistent with the Visy offer outlined above
- 4. note that the estimated value of the contract variations is \$302,000 (depending on the actual recyclables quantity processed) from 1 March 2018 to 30 June 2020
- 5. release this resolution to the ordinary minutes on 2 July 2018.

CARRIED

There being no further items of Business, the Chairperson declared the meeting closed at 7.42 pm.

CONFIRMED THIS

Wednesday

CHAIRPERSON